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KPMG LLP

Suite 1500

550 South Hope Street

Los Angeles, CA 90071-2629

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
California State University Institute:

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the California State University Institute (Institute), a component unit
of the California State University, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Institute’s basic financial statements for the years
then ended as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Institute, as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in financial position, and,
its cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are required to be independent of the Institute, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with
the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Institute’s ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
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substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Institute’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Institute’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management’s discussion and analysis be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Institute’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information in schedule 1 through 3, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 20, 2024
on our consideration of the Institute’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
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with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Institute’s
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Institute’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

KPMe LLP

Los Angeles, California
September 20, 2024



CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE
A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the California State University
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2024 and 2023

The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and performance of the
California State University Institute (the Institute) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. It is
designed to assist the readers in focusing on financial overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
Institute. The discussion has been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with the basic
financial statements and accompanying notes, which follow this section.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Institute as of and for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 have been
prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, as
amended by GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and
Analysis - for Public Colleges and Universities. For reporting purposes, the Institute is considered a special-
purpose government engaged in business-type activities. The Institute's basic financial statements are the
Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and the
Statement of Cash Flows.

Statements of Net Position

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the Institute at the end of the fiscal year and
includes all assets and liabilities of the Institute. The difference between total assets and total liabilities — net
position — is one indicator of the current financial condition of the Institute, while the change in net position is an
indicator of whether the overall financial condition has improved or worsened during the year.

A summary of the Institute’s assets, liabilities, and net position at June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 is as follows:

Condensed Schedule of Net Position

June 30
2024 2023 2022
Assets:
Current assets 100,326,896 77,315,802 19,800,639
Other noncurrent assets 76,599,000 78,535,000 99,022,000
Total assets 176,925,896 155,850,802 118,822,639
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 95,888,088 73,751,424 16,569,725
Noncurrent liabilities 76,599,000 78,535,000 99,022,000
Total liabilities 172,487,088 152,286,424 115,591,725
Net position:
Unrestricted 4,438,808 3,564,378 3,230,914
Total net position 4,438,808 3,564,378 3,230,914
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Assets

The Institute’s assets totaled $176.9 million on June 30, 2024 compared to $155.9 million in the prior year, an
increase of $21.0 million. The increase is primarily attributed to new issuance on short-term Bond Anticipation
Notes (BANs) receivable of $93.3 million for various projects of the California State University (CSU) and
additional issuance of $127 thousand for SDSU Aztec Shops, Ltd. Viva 5750 Apartment Acquisition and San
Diego State Multi-Use Stadium at Mission Valley Project. The increase was offset by the $52.8 million BAN
redemption through the issuance of California State University's Systemwide Revenue Bond (SRB) Series
2023A (Tax-Exempt) as well as the paydown of $20.5 million for San Diego State Multi-Use Stadium at Mission
Valley Project and San Luis Obispo Science and Agricultural Teaching and Research Complex Project in the
year. Further, the investments increased by $858.5 thousand due to increase of net position.

In previous year, the Institute's total assets increased by $37.1 million, to $155.9 million in 2023 from $118.8
million in 2022. The increase is primarily attributed to new issuance on short-term Bond Anticipation Notes
(BANS) receivable of $52.7 million for SDSU Aztec Shops, Ltd. Viva 5750 Apartment Acquisition and SFSU
Science Replacement Building - College of Extended Learning (CEL) Addition Project and additional issuance
of $41 thousand for San Luis Obispo Science and Agricultural Teaching and Research Complex Project. The
increase was offset by the payoff of $710 thousand for the Sacramento Parking V Project, and the pay down of
$15.1 million for the San Diego State Multi-Use Stadium at Mission Valley Project and $528 thousand for the
San Luis Obispo Science and Agricultural Teaching and Research Complex Project in the year. Further, the
investments increased by $350.5 thousand due to increase of net position.

Liabilities

The Institute’s liabilities totaled $172.5 million on June 30, 2024 compared to $152.3 million in the prior year, an
increase of $20.2 million. The increase is primarily due to new short-term commercial paper payable. There is a
direct relationship between BANs and commercial paper payable. BANs are issued by the CSU to provide
short-term financing for its various capital outlay projects. BANs are purchased by the Institute with proceeds
from its issuance of commercial paper. BANs act as collateral for the Institute’s commercial paper and contain
terms consistent with the commercial paper issued. The proceeds from the new commercial paper were used to
purchase new BANs as described above.

The Institute’s liabilities totaled $152.3 million on June 30, 2023, an increase of $36.7 million from previous year.
The increase was primarily due to an increase in outstanding commercial paper.

Net Position

Net position serves as a useful indicator of the Institute's financial position representing the assets net of
liabilities. Net position fluctuates annually due to the Institute's operating results as well as changes in
investment income. The Institute's net position is classified as unrestricted, however, the unrestricted net
position may be designated for use by the Institute.

The Institute’s net position increased by $874.4 thousand, or 25% during fiscal year 2024. The Institute's net
position increased by $333.5 thousand, or 10% during fiscal year 2023.
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents the revenues earned and
expenses incurred during the year on an accrual basis and are classified as either operating or nonoperating. It
presents the results of the Institute’s operations and changes in net position over the course of the fiscal year.

A summary of the Institute’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position is as follows:
Condensed Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Years ended June 30

2024 2023 2022

Operating revenues $ 9,088,658 6,091,982 1,470,411
Operating expenses 8,567,763 5,767,379 1,939,229

Operating gain (loss) 520,895 324,603 (468,818)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 353,535 8,861 (118,784)

Change in net position 874,430 333,464 (587,602)
Net position, beginning of year 3,564,378 3,230,914 3,818,516
Net position, end of year $ 4,438,808 3,564,378 3,230,914

Operating Revenues and Expenses

The operating revenues totaled $9.1 million, an increase of $3.0 million, or 49% compared to fiscal year 2023.
The increase is due to higher program support revenues and interest income at a higher rate and new BANs
issuance in the current year. During fiscal year 2023, the operating revenues totaled $6.1 million, an increase of
$4.6 million, or 314% compared to previous fiscal year.

The operating expenses totaled $8.6 million, an increase of $2.8 million, or 49% compared to fiscal year 2023.
The increase is due to higher interest expense on outstanding commercial papers compared to fiscal year
2023. During fiscal year 2023, the operating expenses totaled $5.8 million, an increase of $3.8 million, or 197%
compared to previous fiscal year.

Similar to the relationship between BANs receivable and commercial paper payable, there is also a direct
relationship between interest expense paid to trustee/issuing and paying agent (U.S. Bank) and interest
charged to members participating in the commercial paper program. Interest charged to members typically
matches interest expense.

Long-Term Debt Obligations (Commercial Paper Program)

The Institute manages a commercial paper program for various financing activities. To minimize debt service
costs during construction periods, the CSU Board of Trustees (the Board) initially finances capital improvements
with proceeds of commercial paper notes. The commercial paper notes are issued by the Institute and secured
by BANs, which are issued by the Board. When the commercial paper capacity reaches its maximum limit, the
short-term debt is refinanced with permanent bond financing through the CSU SRB. In a few cases, financing
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for certain projects with shorter amortization schedules may remain in commercial paper financing rather than
the traditional longer term bonds, and are amortized over shorter to medium terms using revenue derived from
the projects. The Board also utilizes commercial paper issued by the Institute to internally finance certain
equipment and software purchases of CSU campuses. CSU campuses enter into installment purchase
obligations and make installment payments over terms consistent with the useful life of the financed equipment
or software (typically 5-7 years). These installment payments are applied to repay outstanding commercial
paper principal and interest, with interest adjusted annually.

Factors Impacting Future Periods

On July 10, 2024, the Institute rolled over, or renewed, $41.0 million tax-exempt commercial paper for San

Diego State University Aztec Shops, Ltd. The Essential Student Housing Property Acquisition, $23.3 million tax-
exempt commercial paper for Cal Poly San Luis Obispo — Cal Poly Corporation Morabito Place Acquisition and
Renovation, and $21.1 million tax-exempt commercial paper for San Marcos University Village Housing Project.

On July 10, 2024, the Institute also rolled over, or renewed, $5.8 million commercial paper for Cal Poly
Humboldt Student Housing Project and $2.3 million commercial paper for Stanislaus Affordable Student
Housing. The commercial paper was collateralized by BANs on terms consistent with the commercial paper and
bears interest at the same rate as is paid on the related commercial paper.

On August 2, 2024, the Institute rolled over, or renewed, $41.1 million tax-exempt commercial paper for San

Diego State University Aztec Shops, Ltd. The Essential Student Housing Property Acquisition, $23.3 million tax-
exempt commercial paper for Cal Poly San Luis Obispo — Cal Poly Corporation Morabito Place Acquisition and
Renovation, and $21.2 million tax-exempt commercial paper for San Marcos University Village Housing Project.

On August 2, 2024, the Institute also rolled over, or renewed, $5.9 million commercial paper for Cal Poly
Humboldt Student Housing Project and $2.4 million for Stanislaus Affordable Student Housing. The commercial
paper was collateralized by BANs on terms consistent with the commercial paper and bears interest at the
same rate as is paid on the related commercial paper.

On September 5, 2024, the Institute rolled over, or renewed, $6.5 million tax-exempt commercial paper for San
Luis Obispo Science and Agricultural Teaching and Research Complex Project.

On September 5, 2024, the Institute also rolled over, or renewed, $70.5 million commercial paper and paid
down $1.5 million commercial paper for San Diego State Multi-Use Stadium at Mission Valley Project. The
commercial paper was collateralized by BANs on terms consistent with the commercial paper and bears interest
at the same rate as is paid on the related commercial paper.
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2024 2023
Assets:
Current assets:
Short-term investments $ 4,515,496 3,657,026
Revenue bond anticipation notes receivable, current portion 95,278,000 73,176,000
Interest receivable 510,150 460,109
Prepaid expenses 23,250 22,667
Total current assets 100,326,896 77,315,802
Noncurrent assets:
Revenue bond anticipation notes receivable, less current portion 76,599,000 78,535,000
Total assets 176,925,896 155,850,802
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 99,938 115,315
Interest payable 510,150 460,109
Commercial paper payable, current portion 95,278,000 73,176,000
Total current liabilities 95,888,088 73,751,424
Noncurrent liabilities:
Commercial paper payable, net of current portion 76,599,000 78,535,000
Total liabilities 172,487,088 152,286,424
Net position:
Unrestricted 4,438,808 3,564,378
Total net position 4,438,808 3,564,378

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2024 2023
Operating revenues:
Program support $ 2,396,529 2,012,574
Interest income 6,692,129 4,079,408
Total operating revenues 9,088,658 6,091,982
Operating expenses:
Program costs 1,875,634 1,687,971
Interest on debt 6,692,129 4,079,408
Total operating expenses 8,567,763 5,767,379
Operating gain 520,895 324,603
Nonoperating revenues:
Investment income, net 353,535 8,861
Total nonoperating revenues 353,535 8,861
Change in net position 874,430 333,464
Net position, beginning of year 3,564,378 3,230,914
Net position, end of year $ 4,438,808 3,564,378

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:
Program support
Expenditures and other deductions
Interest received on notes
Interest paid on commercial paper

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from commercial paper
Payments of commercial paper

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Invested in Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes
Proceeds from Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes
Investment income proceeds
Deposits into the CSU Consolidated Investment Pool
Withdrawals from the CSU Consolidated Investment Pool

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating gain to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating gain
Adjustments to reconcile operating gain to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in interest receivable
Increase in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase in interest payable

Net cash provided by operating activities

Supplemental disclosures of noncash capital and related financing activities:
Commercial paper proceeds directly wired to escrow agent by bank
Bond proceeds directly wired to Commercial Paper Trustee by bank
Rollover of commercial paper — principal issued
Rollover of commercial paper — principal paid
Bond Proceeds directly paid to CP Trustees
Commercial paper proceeds directly paid to STO

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2024 2023
2,396,529 2,012,574
(1,891,594) (1,670,897)
6,642,088 3,743,783
(6,642,088) (3,743,783)
504,935 341,677
31,619,039 15,089,000
(20,528,000)  (16,348,000)
11,091,039 (1,259,000)
(31,619,039)  (15,089,000)
20,528,000 16,348,000
354,031 17,680
(57,604,499)  (36,620,257)
56,745,533 36,260,900
(11,595,974) 917,323
520,895 324,603
(50,041) (335,625)
(583) (1,000)
(15,377) 18,074
50,041 335,625
504,935 341,677
61,849,961 37,600,000
(61,849,961)  (37,600,000)
561,651,000 470,760,000
(561,651,000)  (470,760,000)
52,775,000 —

(52,775,000)
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A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the California State University
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024 and 2023

Organization

California State University Institute (the Institute) is a nonprofit California corporation that is an auxiliary
organization of the California State University (the CSU). The Institute is a discretely presented
component unit of the CSU. The Institute's primary purpose is to provide financing, in the form of
commercial paper, to fund projects to be undertaken at the various CSU campuses.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements for the Institute have been prepared under the standards
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) using the accrual basis of
accounting and economic resources measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

New Accounting Pronouncements

On July 1, 2023, the Institute implemented GASB Statement No. 99, "Omnibus 2022," for provisions
related to financial guarantees and the classification and reporting of derivative instruments within the
scope of GASB 53. This Statement clarifies accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees.
The implementation of this standard did not have a material impact on the Institute's financial
statements.

On July 1, 2023, the Institute implemented GASB Statement No. 100, "Accounting Changes and Error
Corrections." This Statement is intended to enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements for
accounting changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant,
consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or assessing accountability. The
implementation of this standard did not have a material impact on the Institute's financial statements.

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 101, "Compensated Absences," which will be effective
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025. This statement will update the recognition and measurement
guidance for compensated absences. This statement requires that liabilities for compensated absences
be recognized for (1) leave that has not been used and (2) leave that has been used but not yet paid in
cash or settled through noncash means. The Institute is currently assessing the impact of the
implementation of this Statement on its financial statements, but does not expect it to have any material
impact.

In December 2023, the GASB issued Statement No. 102, "Certain Risk Disclosure,"which will be
effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025. This statement will require disclosure about risks
related to the Institute’s vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations or constraints. This statement
requires the Institute to assess (1) whether a concentration or constraint makes the primary government
reporting unit or other reporting units that report a liability for revenue debt vulnerable to the risk of a
substantial impact, and (2) whether an event or events associated with a concentration or constraint
that could cause the substantial impact to have occurred, have begun to occur, or are more likely than
not to begin to occur within 12 months of the date the financial statements are issued. The Institute is

11 (Continued)



(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE
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currently assessing the impact of the implementation of this Statement on its financial statements, but
does not expect it to have any material impact.

Net Position

The Institute's net position is classified as unrestricted. Unrestricted net position may be designated for

use by the Institute. The Institute has adopted a policy of utilizing restricted funds, when available, prior

to unrestricted funds. There are no amounts required to be reported as restricted net position as of June
30, 2024 and 2023.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Statements of Cash Flows

The Institute considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity date of three months or less
to be cash and cash equivalents. The Institute considers amounts included in the CSU Consolidated
Investment Pool (the Investment Pool) to be investments. Certain transactions recorded as revenue or
expenses in the accompanying Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
include transactions between entities that are also participants in the Investment Pool. The Institute
considers changes in the respective participants' equity in the Investment Pool resulting from these
transactions to represent cash flows of the Institute in the accompanying Statements of Cash Flows.

Investments

Investments are reflected at fair value using quoted market prices. Realized and unrealized gains and
losses are included in the accompanying Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position as a component of investment income, net.

Investments that are used for current operations are classified as short-term investments. Investments
that are restricted for withdrawal or use for other than current operations, designated or restricted for
the acquisition or construction of noncurrent assets, designated or restricted for the liquidation of the
noncurrent portion of long-term debt, or restricted as to the liquidity of the investments are classified as
other long-term investments. There are no long-term investments held at June 30, 2024.

Revenues

The Institute reports collections from the participating members within program support in the
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for revenues recognized during the
period earned. The rates charged to campuses for short-term campus construction project financings
are equal to the rates charged on the Institute's commercial paper. The rates charged to participating
members for capital financings are higher than the rates charged on the Institute's commercial paper
due to the administrative costs to run this program. Investment income, net is recognized during the
period earned.

Classification of Revenues and Expenses

The Institute considers operating revenues and expenses in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Net Position to be those revenues and expenses that result from exchange

12 (Continued)



©)

(h)

(@)

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE
A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the California State University
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024 and 2023

transactions or other activities that are connected directly to the Institute's primary purposes. Exchange
transactions include charges for services rendered and the acquisition of goods and services. Certain
other transactions are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses in accordance with GASB
requirements. These nonoperating activities primarily include the Institute's net investment income.

Income Taxes

The Institute is an organization exempt from taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and Section 23701d of the California Revenue and Taxation Code and is generally not subject to
federal or state income taxes. However, the Institute is subject to income taxes on any net income that
is derived from a trade or business, regularly carried on, and not in furtherance of the purpose for which
it is granted exemption. No income tax provision has been recorded as the net income, if any, from any
unrelated trade or business, in the opinion of management, is not material to the financial statements
taken as a whole.

Use of Estimates

In preparing financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles,
management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual amounts may differ from
those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Investments, and Investment Income, Net

The Institute’s cash and cash equivalents and investments as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 are classified
in the accompanying Statements of Net Position as follows:

2024 2023
Short-Term Investments 4,515,496 3,657,026
Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments $ 4,515,496 3,657,026

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consisted of demand deposits held at a financial institution.
The Institute maintains centralized management for substantially all of its cash and cash equivalents.
Cash in demand deposit accounts is minimized by sweeping available cash balances into the CSU
Consolidated Investment Pool on a daily basis.
(/) Custodial Credit Risk for Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the custodian, deposits may not be

returned to the Institute. The Institute's deposits are maintained at financial institutions that are
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation secured at $250,000.

13 (Continued)
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(b) Investments

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Institute’s investment portfolio consisted of investments held in the CSU
Consolidated Investment Pool. Separate accounting is maintained as to the amounts allocable to the
various funds and programs.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Investment Policy

State law and regulations require that surplus moneys of the Institute must be invested. The primary
objective of the Institute's investment policy is to safeguard the principal. The secondary objective is
to meet the liquidity needs of the Institute. The third objective is to return an acceptable yield.

The Institute's investment policy authorizes funds held in local trust accounts under Education Code
Section 89721 and 89724 to be invested in any of the securities authorized by Government Code
Section 16430 and Education Code Section 89724, subject to certain limitations. In general, the
Institute's investment policy permits investments in obligations of the federal and California state
governments, certificates of deposit, high-quality domestic corporate and fixed income securities,
and certain other investment instruments.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the custodian, the investments or
deposits may not be returned to the Institute. All of the Institute's securities are registered in the
CSU's name by the custodial bank as an agent for the Institute.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fluctuations in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair
value to fluctuations in market interest rates. The Institute's investment guidelines measure interest
rate risk by limiting an eligible investment to a maximum effective maturity and by limiting the
weighted average duration of the portfolio. The effective maturity date reflects a bond with
embedded options such as a call, put, reset date, and prepayment speed resulting in the maturity of
a bond being less than its final maturity date. The weighted average duration is a measure of the
sensitivity of the price of an investment relative to fluctuations in market interest rates.

The weighted average durations of the Institute's investment portfolio for each investment type are
2.34346 and 1.94967 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Another way the Institute manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination
of short-term and long-term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion
of the portfolio is maturing or nearing maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide cash flow
and liquidity needed for operations.
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE
A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the California State University
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024 and 2023

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This risk is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization.

By law, the Institute invests in low credit risk securities such as U.S. government securities,
securities of federally sponsored agencies, highly rated domestic corporate bonds, prime-rated
commercial paper, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements, banker's acceptances, and
negotiable certificates of deposit.

Concentration Risk

Concentration of credit risk rises as investments become concentrated relative to a portfolio
characteristic such as issuance, issuer, market sector, counter-party, or sovereign nation and is best
mitigated by diversification. The Institute's investment policy has concentration limits that provide
sufficient diversification.

Fair Value Measurements

The Institute uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and
liabilities and to determine the fair value disclosures. The fair value of a financial instrument is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is best determined based upon
quoted market prices. However, in certain instances where quoted market prices are not available,
fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those
techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including discount rates and
estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates may not be realized in an
immediate settlement of the instrument. The Institute groups its assets and liabilities measured at
fair value in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded and the
reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value. The level in the fair value hierarchy with
which a fair value measurement in its entirety falls is based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
are as follows:

» Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Institute has the ability to access at the measurement date.

» Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

» Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. This valuation is accomplished
using management’s best estimate of fair value, with inputs into the determination of fair value
that require significant management judgment or estimation.

As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, all investments held by the Institute are included in the CSU
Consolidated Investment Pool and are not required to be disclosed within the Fair Value Hierarchy.
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024 and 2023

(c) Investment Income, Net

Investment income, net, included within the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position comprises changes in unrealized losses of $0.5 thousand and $8.8 thousand net of interest
and dividend income of $354.0 thousand and $17.7 thousand for the years ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, respectively.

(4) Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes Receivable
Under the Revenue Bond Anticipation Note (BAN) Resolution, BANs are issued directly by the CSU to
the Institute, rather than publicly to the capital market. Thus, BANs are considered internal obligations
between CSU and the Institute. The Institute purchases the BANs which act as collateral for the
issuance of commercial paper to provide interim financing for campus capital projects. Each of the
BANSs finances a separate project and corresponds to an issue of commercial paper (note 5).
At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Institute held $171.9 million and $151.7 million, respectively, in BANs in
relation to various campuses’ commercial paper issuances. Interest on BANs is equal to the interest on
the commercial paper with maximum and minimum weighted average interest rates at June 30, 2024
and 2023 were 5.51% and 5.39%, and 2.83% and 1.16%, respectively. As of June 30, 2024, the
Institute classified $95.3 million in BANs as current assets to be consistent with the presentation of the
related commercial paper as management has the intent and ability to collect these receivables in the
next fiscal year. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, BANSs receivable consisted of the following:
Project names 2024 2023
Cal Poly Corporation — 4800 Morabito Place Acquisition and Renovation Project $ 23,210,000 —
Cal Poly Humboldt Student Housing Project 5,800,000 —
CSU San Marcos University Village Housing Project 21,064,000.00 —
CSU Stanislaus Affordable Student Housing 2,365,000 —
SDSU Aztec Shops, Ltd. The Essential Student Housing Property Acquisition Project 40,903,000 —
SDSU Aztec Shops, Ltd. Viva 5750 Apartment Acquisition — 38,065,000
San Francisco State University Science Replacement Building College of Extended Learning (CEL) Addition — 14,583,000
San Diego State University Mission Valley Multi-Use Stadium 72,000,000 92,000,000
San Luis Obispo Science and Agriculture Teaching and Research Complex Project 6,535,000 7,063,000
Total BANs receivable $ 171,877,000 151,711,000
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Future BAN payments due to the Institute as of June 30, 2024 are as follows:

Year Total
2025 $ 95,278,000
2026 6,436,000
2027 64,936,000
2028 5,227,000
Total $ 171,877,000

(5) Commercial Paper

The Institute manages a commercial paper program, which provides for secured borrowings through
issuance of Series A Tax Exempt and Series B Taxable Notes up to an authorized aggregate principal
and accrued interest amount of $500 million. The commercial paper notes are issued in denominations
of $1 thousand principal amounts each or any integral multiple thereof, and secured by BANs and other
capital financing agreements (note 4). The commercial paper program is supported by a $300 million
letter of credit facility, issued on a several but not joint basis by State Street Bank and Trust Company
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association.

As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, commercial paper with a face amount of $171.9 million and $151.7
million, respectively, was issued and outstanding. As of June 30,2024, the Institute classified $95.3
million in commercial paper payable as a current liability, consistent with the presentation of the related
BANs. The borrowings have variable maturity dates not to exceed 270 days with rollover provisions at
maturity and bear interest at tax-exempt or, in the case of taxable commercial paper, taxable
commercial paper interest rates as calculated by the commercial paper dealers as of each maturity
date. The maturing commercial paper is rolled, or renewed, until such time that a Systemwide Revenue
Bond is issued to pay off the portion of the outstanding commercial paper balance. The CSU has the
ability to, and intends to, extend certain BANs to periods longer than one year; accordingly, the related
outstanding amount of commercial paper related to these BANs at year-end has been classified as a
long-term obligation. The maximum and minimum weighted average interest rates at June 30, 2024 and
2023 were 5.51% and 5.39%, and 2.83% and 1.16%, respectively.

The commercial paper program is bound by certain agreements, including the Trust Indenture with the
trustee/paying agent and the Reimbursement Agreement with the Letter of Credit (LOC) banks. Under
certain provisions of the Trust Indenture, in the event of a default, the trustee/paying agent shall take
actions set forth by the BAN Resolution to affect the sale of long-term bonds to refinance outstanding
commercial paper notes. Upon the occurrence of certain events of default specified in the
Reimbursement Agreement, the right of the Institute and the CSU to issue notes may be terminated or
be suspended by the LOC banks.
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE
A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the California State University
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024 and 2023

The carrying amounts of the Institute's commercial paper payable are as follows:

2024 2023
Commercial paper payable, current portion $ 95,278,000 73,176,000
Commercial paper payable, net of current portion 76,599,000 78,535,000
Total commercial paper payable $ 171,877,000 151,711,000

The changes in outstanding debt during fiscal years 2024 and 2023, which include the rollover of
commercial paper, are as follows:

2024 2023
Commercial paper, beginning balance $ 151,711,000 115,370,000
Commercial paper issued, including rollovers — principal 655,120,000 523,449,000
Commercial paper paid, including rollovers — principal (634,954,000) (487,108,000)
Commercial paper, ending balance $ 171,877,000 151,711,000

Related Party Transactions

The Institute provides funding to the CSU Chancellor’s Office for administrative services. The
administrative services totaled $550 thousand and $401 thousand annually for fiscal years 2024 and
2023, respectively.

The Institute provides financing to CSU campuses to support construction projects and certain capital
needs (note 4). The Institute received revenue for program support from the CSU campuses totaling
$2.4 million and $2.0 million at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Additionally, interest income
received by the Institute from CSU campuses was $6.7 million and $4.1 million for the years ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through September 20, 2024 which corresponds to the date
when the financial statements were issued. There are no subsequent events that require disclosure.
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Schedule 1

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE
A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the California State University
Schedule of Net Position
June 30, 2024
(for inclusion in the California State University Financial Statements)

Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ —
Short-term investments 4,515,496
Accounts receivable, net 510,150

Lease receivable, current portion —
P3 receivable, current portion —

Notes receivable, current portion 95,278,000
Pledges receivable, net —
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 23,250

Total current assets 100,326,896

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents —
Accounts receivable, net —
Lease receivable, net of current portion —
P3 receivable, net of current portion —
Notes receivable, net of current portion 76,599,000
Student loans receivable, net —
Pledges receivable, net —
Endowment investments —
Other long-term investments —
Capital assets, net —
Other assets —
Total noncurrent assets 76,599,000
Total assets $ 176,925,896
Deferred outflows of resources:

Unamortized loss on debt refunding $ —
Net pension liability —
Net OPEB liability —

Leases —
P3 —
Others —
Total deferred outflows of resources $ —
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 99,938

Accrued salaries and benefits —
Accrued compensated absences, current portion —
Unearned revenues —
Lease liabilities, current portion —
SBITA liabilities - current portion —
P3 liabilities - current portion —
Long-term debt obligations, current portion 95,278,000
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE
A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the California State University
Schedule of Net Position
June 30, 2024
(for inclusion in the California State University Financial Statements)

Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses, current portion —
Depository accounts —
Other liabilities 510,150
Total current liabilities 95,888,088

Noncurrent liabilities:

Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion $ —
Unearned revenues —
Grants refundable —
Lease liabilities, net of current portion —
SBITA liabilities, net of current portion —
P3 liabilities, net of current portion —
Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion 76,599,000
Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of current portion —
Depository accounts —
Net other postemployment benefits liability —
Net pension liability —
Other liabilities —

Total noncurrent liabilities 76,599,000

Total liabilities $ 172,487,088

Deferred inflows of resources:

P3 service concession arrangements $ —
Net pension liability —
Net OPEB liability —
Unamortized gain on debt refunding —
Nonexchange transactions —

Lease —
P3 —
Others —
Total deferred inflows of resources $ —

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets $ —

Restricted for:

Nonexpendable — endowments —

Expendable:
Scholarships and fellowships —
Research —
Loans —
Capital projects —
Debt service —

Others —
Unrestricted 4,438,808
Total net position $ 4,438,808

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE
A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the California State University
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Year ended June 30, 2024
(for inclusion in the California State University Financial Statements)

Revenues:
Operating revenues:

Student tuition and fees, gross $ —
Scholarship allowances —

Grants and contracts, noncapital:
Federal —
State —
Local —
Nongovernmental —

Sales and services of educational activities —

Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, gross —
Scholarship allowances —

Other operating revenues 9,088,658
Total operating revenues 9,088,658
Expenses:
Operating expenses:
Instruction —
Research —

Public service —
Academic support —
Student services —
Institutional support —
Operation and maintenance of plant —
Student grants and scholarships —

Auxiliary enterprise expenses 8,567,763
Depreciation and amortization —
Total operating expenses 8,567,763
Operating income 520,895

Nonoperating revenues:
State appropriations, noncapital —
Federal financial aid grants, noncapital —
State financial aid grants, noncapital —
Local financial aid grants, noncapital —
Nongovernmental and other financial aid grants, noncapital —
Other federal nonoperating grants, noncapital —
Gifts, noncapital —
Investment income (loss), net 353,535
Endowment income (loss), net —
Interest expense —
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) —
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE
A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the California State University
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Year ended June 30, 2024
(for inclusion in the California State University Financial Statements)

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 353,535
Income (loss) before other revenues (expenses) 874,430
State appropriations, capital $ —

Grants and gifts, capital —
Additions (reductions) to permanent endowments —

Increase in net position 874,430

Net position:
Net position at beginning of year, as previously reported 3,564,378
Restatements —
Net position at beginning of year, as restated 3,564,378
Net position at end of year $ 4,438,808

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE
A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the California State University
Other Information

June 30, 2024

(for inclusion in the California State University Financial Statements)

1. Cash and cash equivalents:

Portion of restricted cash and cash equivalents related to endowments

All other restricted cash and cash equivalents
Noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents
Current cash and cash equivalents

Total

2.1 Composition of investments:

Money market funds
Repurchase agreements
Certificates of deposit
U.S. agency securities
U.S. treasury securities
Municipal bonds
Corporate bonds
Asset-backed securities
Mortgage-backed securities
Commercial paper
Supranational
Mutual funds
Exchange-traded funds
Equity securities
Alternative investments:
Private equity (including limited partnerships)
Hedge funds
Managed futures
Real estate investments (including REITs)
Commodities
Derivatives
Other alternative investments
Other external investment pools
CSU Consolidated Investment Pool (formerly SWIFT)
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
State of California Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF)
Other investments:
Total Other investments
Total investments
Less endowment investments
Total investments, net of endowments
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Current Noncurrent Total
$ _ _ —
4,515,496 — 4,515,496
4,515,496 — 4,515,496
$ 4,515,496 — 4,515,496
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE
A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the California State University
Other Information
June 30, 2024
(for inclusion in the California State University Financial Statements)

2.2 Fair value hierarchy in investments:

Money market funds
Repurchase agreements
Certificates of deposit
U.S. agency securities
U.S. treasury securities
Municipal bonds
Corporate bonds
Asset-backed securities
Mortgage-backed securities
Commercial paper
Supranational
Mutual funds
Exchange-traded funds
Equity securities
Alternative investments:
Private equity (including limited partnerships)
Hedge funds
Managed futures
Real estate investments (including REITs)
Commodities
Derivatives
Other alternative investment types
Other external investment pools
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
State of California Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF)

Equity in CSU Consolidated Investment Pool
Total investments

2.3 Investments held by the University under contractual agreements:

3.1 Composition of capital assets, including ROU, net:

3.2 Detail of depreciation and amortization expense:
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Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets  Significant
for Other Significant
Identical Observabl Unobserva Net Asset
Assets e Inputs  ble Inputs Value
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) (NAV)
4,515,496 — — — —
$4,515,496 — — — —

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE
A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the California State University
Other Information
June 30, 2024
(for inclusion in the California State University Financial Statements)

4. Long-term liabilities:

Long-term debt obligations:

Balance Balance Current Noncurrent
June 30, 2023 Additions Reductions June 30, 2024 Portion Portion
Commercial paper $ 151,711,000 655,120,000 (634,954,000) 171,877,000 95,278,000 76,599,000
Total long-term debt obligations $ 151,711,000 655,120,000 (634,954,000) 171,877,000 95,278,000 76,599,000
5. Lease, SBITA, P3 liabilities: Not Applicable

6. Future minimum payments schedule - Long-term debt obligations:

Auxiliary revenue bonds (non-

SRB related) All other long-term debt obligations Total long-term debt obligations
Principal

Principal Interest and Principal Interest  Principal Principal Interest Principal
Year ending June 30: Only Only Interest Only Only and Interest Only Only and Interest
2025 $ — — — 95,278,000 — 95,278,000 95,278,000 — 95,278,000
2026 — — — 6,436,000 — 6,436,000 6,436,000 — 6,436,000
2027 — — — 64,936,000 — 64,936,000 64,936,000 — 64,936,000
2028 — — — 5,227,000 — 5,227,000 5,227,000 — 5,227,000
2029 — — — — — — — — —

Total minimum

payments $ — — — 171,877,000 — 171,877,000 171,877,000 — 171,877,000

Less: amounts representing interest —
Present value of future minimum payments 171,877,000

Unamortized net premium/(discount) —

Total long-term debt obligations 171,877,000
Less: current portion (95,278,000)
Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion $ 76,599,000

7. Transactions with related entities:
Payments to University for salaries of University personnel working on contracts, grants, and other programs $ 549,550
Payments to University for other than salaries of University personnel —
Payments received from University for services, space, and programs —
Gifts-in-kind to the University from discretely presented component units —
Gifts (cash or assets) to the University from discretely presented component units —
Accounts payable to University —
Other amounts payable to University —
Accounts receivable from University —

Other amounts receivable from University —
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Other Information
June 30, 2024
(for inclusion in the California State University Financial Statements)

8. Restatements: Not Applicable

9. Natural classifications of operating expenses:

Schedule 3

Scholarships Supplies and Depreciation Total
Benefits - Benefits -  Benefits - and other and operating
Salaries Other Pension OPEB fellowships services amortization expenses
Instruction $ — — — — — — _ _
Research — — — — — — — —
Public service — — — — — — — —
Academic support — — — — — — — —
Student services — — — — — — — -
Institutional support — — — — — — — —
Operation and maintenance of plant — — — — — — — —
Student grants and scholarships — — — — — — — —
Auxiliary enterprise expenses — — — — — 8,567,763 — 8,567,763
Depreciation and amortization — — — —_ — — — —
Total operating expenses $ — — — — — 8,567,763 — 8,567,763
10. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources: Not Applicable
11. Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) Not Applicable
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	Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
	Opinions 
	We have audited the financial statements of the California State University Institute (Institute), a component unit of the California State University, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Institute s basic financial statements for the years then ended as listed in the table of contents. 
	In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Institute, as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in financial position, and, its cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 
	Basis for Opinions 
	We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Institute, and to meet our other ethical
	Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
	Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
	In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Institute s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
	Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
	Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a ma
	In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and , we: 
	Government Auditing Standards
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	Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

	LI
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	Figure

	Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

	LI
	Lbl
	Figure

	Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Institute s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
	Figure


	LI
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	Figure

	Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

	LI
	Lbl
	Figure

	Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Institute s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 
	Figure



	We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the audit. 
	Required Supplementary Information 
	U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management s discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have ap
	Supplementary Information 
	Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Institute s basic financial statements. The supplementary information in schedule 1 through 3, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial stateme
	Government Auditing Standards 
	Other Reporting Required by 

	In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 20, 2024 on our consideration of the Institute s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opi
	Figure
	Los Angeles, California September 20, 2024 
	Management’s Discussion and Analysis June 30, 2024 and 2023 
	The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and performance of the California State University Institute (the Institute) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. It is designed to assist the readers in focusing on financial overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Institute. The discussion has been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, which follow this section
	Overview of the Financial Statements 
	The financial statements of the Institute as of and for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 have been prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, as amended by GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for Public Colleges and Universities. For reporting purposes, the Institute is considered a special-
	Statements of Net Position 
	The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the Institute at the end of the fiscal year and includes all assets and liabilities of the Institute. The difference between total assets and total liabilities – net position – is one indicator of the current financial condition of the Institute, while the change in net position is an indicator of whether the overall financial condition has improved or worsened during the year. 
	A summary of the Institute’s assets, liabilities, and net position at June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 is as follows: 
	Condensed Schedule of Net Position 
	Table
	TR
	June 30 
	June 30 


	2024 
	2024 
	2024 

	2023 
	2023 

	2022 
	2022 


	Assets: 
	Assets: 
	Assets: 


	Current assets 
	Current assets 
	Current assets 

	$ 100,326,896 
	$ 100,326,896 

	77,315,802 
	77,315,802 

	19,800,639 
	19,800,639 


	Other noncurrent assets 
	Other noncurrent assets 
	Other noncurrent assets 

	76,599,000 
	76,599,000 

	78,535,000 
	78,535,000 

	99,022,000 
	99,022,000 


	Total assets 
	Total assets 
	Total assets 

	$ 
	$ 
	176,925,896 


	155,850,802 
	155,850,802 

	118,822,639 
	118,822,639 


	Liabilities: 
	Liabilities: 
	Liabilities: 


	Current liabilities 
	Current liabilities 
	Current liabilities 

	$ 95,888,088 
	$ 95,888,088 

	73,751,424 
	73,751,424 

	16,569,725 
	16,569,725 


	Noncurrent liabilities 
	Noncurrent liabilities 
	Noncurrent liabilities 

	76,599,000 
	76,599,000 

	78,535,000 
	78,535,000 

	99,022,000 
	99,022,000 


	Total liabilities 
	Total liabilities 
	Total liabilities 

	$ 
	$ 
	172,487,088 


	152,286,424 
	152,286,424 

	115,591,725 
	115,591,725 


	Net position: 
	Net position: 
	Net position: 


	Unrestricted 
	Unrestricted 
	Unrestricted 

	$ 4,438,808 
	$ 4,438,808 

	3,564,378 
	3,564,378 

	3,230,914 
	3,230,914 


	Total net position 
	Total net position 
	Total net position 

	$ 4,438,808 
	$ 4,438,808 

	3,564,378 
	3,564,378 

	3,230,914 
	3,230,914 



	Management’s Discussion and Analysis June 30, 2024 and 2023 
	Assets 
	The Institute’s assets totaled $176.9 million on June 30, 2024 compared to $155.9 million in the prior year, an increase of $21.0 million. The increase is primarily attributed to new issuance on short-term Bond Anticipation Notes (BANs) receivable of $93.3 million for various projects of the California State University (CSU) and additional issuance of $127 thousand for SDSU Aztec Shops, Ltd. Viva 5750 Apartment Acquisition and San Diego State Multi-Use Stadium at Mission Valley Project. The increase was off
	In previous year, the Institute's total assets increased by $37.1 million, to $155.9 million in 2023 from $118.8 million in 2022. The increase is primarily attributed to new issuance on short-term Bond Anticipation Notes (BANs) receivable of $52.7 million for SDSU Aztec Shops, Ltd. Viva 5750 Apartment Acquisition and SFSU Science Replacement Building - College of Extended Learning (CEL) Addition Project and additional issuance of $41 thousand for San Luis Obispo Science and Agricultural Teaching and Researc
	Liabilities 
	The Institute’s liabilities totaled $172.5 million on June 30, 2024 compared to $152.3 million in the prior year, an increase of $20.2 million. The increase is primarily due to new short-term commercial paper payable. There is a direct relationship between BANs and commercial paper payable. BANs are issued by the CSU to provide short-term financing for its various capital outlay projects. BANs are purchased by the Institute with proceeds from its issuance of commercial paper. BANs act as collateral for the 
	The Institute’s liabilities totaled $172.5 million on June 30, 2024 compared to $152.3 million in the prior year, an increase of $20.2 million. The increase is primarily due to new short-term commercial paper payable. There is a direct relationship between BANs and commercial paper payable. BANs are issued by the CSU to provide short-term financing for its various capital outlay projects. BANs are purchased by the Institute with proceeds from its issuance of commercial paper. BANs act as collateral for the 

	The Institute’s liabilities totaled $152.3 million on June 30, 2023, an increase of $36.7 million from previous year. The increase was primarily due to an increase in outstanding commercial paper. 
	The Institute’s liabilities totaled $152.3 million on June 30, 2023, an increase of $36.7 million from previous year. The increase was primarily due to an increase in outstanding commercial paper. 

	Net Position 
	Net position serves as a useful indicator of the lnstitute's financial position representing the assets net of liabilities. Net position fluctuates annually due to the lnstitute's operating results as well as changes in investment income. The lnstitute's net position is classified as unrestricted, however, the unrestricted net position may be designated for use by the Institute. 
	10% 
	The Institute’s net position increased by $874.4 thousand, or 25% during fiscal year 2024. The Institute's net position increased by $333.5 thousand, or 
	during fiscal year 2023. 

	Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
	The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents the revenues earned and expenses incurred during the year on an accrual basis and are classified as either operating or nonoperating. It presents the results of the Institute’s operations and changes in net position over the course of the fiscal year. 
	A summary of the Institute’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position is as follows: 
	Condensed Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
	Table
	TR
	Years ended June 30 
	Years ended June 30 


	2024 
	2024 
	2024 

	2023 
	2023 

	2022 
	2022 


	Operating revenues 
	Operating revenues 
	Operating revenues 

	$ 9,088,658 
	$ 9,088,658 

	6,091,982 
	6,091,982 

	1,470,411 
	1,470,411 


	Operating expenses 
	Operating expenses 
	Operating expenses 

	8,567,763 
	8,567,763 

	5,767,379 
	5,767,379 

	1,939,229 
	1,939,229 


	Operating gain (loss) 
	Operating gain (loss) 
	Operating gain (loss) 

	520,895 
	520,895 

	324,603 
	324,603 

	(468,818) 
	(468,818) 


	Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
	Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
	Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

	353,535 
	353,535 

	8,861 
	8,861 

	(118,784) 
	(118,784) 


	Change in net position 
	Change in net position 
	Change in net position 

	874,430 
	874,430 

	333,464 
	333,464 

	(587,602) 
	(587,602) 


	Net position, beginning of year 
	Net position, beginning of year 
	Net position, beginning of year 

	3,564,378 
	3,564,378 

	3,230,914 
	3,230,914 

	3,818,516 
	3,818,516 


	Net position, end of year 
	Net position, end of year 
	Net position, end of year 

	$ 4,438,808 
	$ 4,438,808 

	3,564,378 
	3,564,378 

	3,230,914 
	3,230,914 



	Operating Revenues and Expenses 
	The operating revenues totaled , an of compared to fiscal year 2023. The in
	$9.1 million
	increase 
	$3.0 million, or 49% 
	crease is due to higher program support revenues and interest income at a higher rate and new BANs issuance in the current year. During fiscal year 2023, the operating revenues totaled $6.1 million, an increase of $4.6 million, or 314% compared to previous fiscal year. 

	The operating expenses totaled $8.6 millionan of $2.8 million, or 49% compared to fiscal year 2023. 
	, 
	increase 
	The increase is due to higher interest expense on outstanding commercial papers compared to fiscal year 2023. During fiscal year 2023, the operating expenses totaled $5.8 million, an increase of $3.8 million, or 197% compared to previous fiscal year. 

	Similar to the relationship between BANs receivable and commercial paper payable, there is also a direct relationship between interest expense paid to trustee/issuing and paying agent (U.S. Bank) and interest charged to members participating in the commercial paper program. Interest charged to members typically matches interest expense. 
	Long-Term Debt Obligations (Commercial Paper Program) 
	The Institute manages a commercial paper program for various financing activities. To minimize debt service costs during construction periods, the CSU Board of Trustees (the Board) initially finances capital improvements with proceeds of commercial paper notes. The commercial paper notes are issued by the Institute and secured by BANs, which are issued by the Board. When the commercial paper capacity reaches its maximum limit, the short-term debt is refinanced with permanent bond financing through the CSU S
	Factors Impacting Future Periods 
	On July 10, 2024, the Institute rolled over, or renewed, $41.0 million tax-exempt commercial paper for San Diego State University Aztec Shops, Ltd. The Essential Student Housing Property Acquisition, $23.3 million tax-exempt commercial paper for Cal Poly San Luis Obispo – Cal Poly Corporation Morabito Place Acquisition and Renovation, and $21.1 million tax-exempt commercial paper for San Marcos University Village Housing Project. 
	On July 10, 2024, the Institute also rolled over, or renewed, $5.8 million commercial paper for Cal Poly Humboldt Student Housing Project and $2.3 million commercial paper for Stanislaus Affordable Student Housing. The commercial paper was collateralized by BANs on terms consistent with the commercial paper and bears interest at the same rate as is paid on the related commercial paper. 
	On August 2, 2024, the Institute rolled over, or renewed, $41.1 million tax-exempt commercial paper for San Diego State University Aztec Shops, Ltd. The Essential Student Housing Property Acquisition, $23.3 million tax-exempt commercial paper for Cal Poly San Luis Obispo – Cal Poly Corporation Morabito Place Acquisition and Renovation, and $21.2 million tax-exempt commercial paper for San Marcos University Village Housing Project. 
	On August 2, 2024, the Institute also rolled over, or renewed, $5.9 million commercial paper for Cal Poly Humboldt Student Housing Project and $2.4 million for Stanislaus Affordable Student Housing. The commercial paper was collateralized by BANs on terms consistent with the commercial paper and bears interest at the same rate as is paid on the related commercial paper. 
	On September 5, 2024, the Institute rolled over, or renewed, $6.5 million tax-exempt commercial paper for San Luis Obispo Science and Agricultural Teaching and Research Complex Project. 
	On September 5, 2024, the Institute also rolled over, or renewed, $70.5 million commercial paper and paid down $1.5 million commercial paper for San Diego State Multi-Use Stadium at Mission Valley Project. The commercial paper was collateralized by BANs on terms consistent with the commercial paper and bears interest at the same rate as is paid on the related commercial paper. 
	Statements of Net Position June 30, 2024 and 2023 
	2024 
	2024 
	2024 
	2023 

	Assets: 
	Assets: 

	Current assets: 
	Current assets: 

	Short-term investments 
	Short-term investments 
	Short-term investments 

	$ 4,515,496 
	$ 4,515,496 

	3,657,026 
	3,657,026 


	Revenue bond anticipation notes receivable, current portion 
	Revenue bond anticipation notes receivable, current portion 
	Revenue bond anticipation notes receivable, current portion 

	95,278,000 
	95,278,000 

	73,176,000 
	73,176,000 


	Interest receivable 
	Interest receivable 
	Interest receivable 

	510,150 
	510,150 

	460,109 
	460,109 


	Prepaid expenses 
	Prepaid expenses 
	Prepaid expenses 

	23,250 
	23,250 

	22,667 
	22,667 


	Total current assets 
	Total current assets 
	Total current assets 

	100,326,896 
	100,326,896 

	77,315,802 
	77,315,802 


	Noncurrent assets: 
	Noncurrent assets: 
	Noncurrent assets: 


	Revenue bond anticipation notes receivable, less current portion 
	Revenue bond anticipation notes receivable, less current portion 
	Revenue bond anticipation notes receivable, less current portion 

	76,599,000 
	76,599,000 

	78,535,000 
	78,535,000 


	Total assets 
	Total assets 
	Total assets 

	176,925,896 
	176,925,896 

	155,850,802 
	155,850,802 


	Liabilities: 
	Liabilities: 
	Liabilities: 


	Current liabilities: 
	Current liabilities: 
	Current liabilities: 


	Accounts payable 
	Accounts payable 
	Accounts payable 

	99,938 
	99,938 

	115,315 
	115,315 


	Interest payable 
	Interest payable 
	Interest payable 

	510,150 
	510,150 

	460,109 
	460,109 


	Commercial paper payable, current portion 
	Commercial paper payable, current portion 
	Commercial paper payable, current portion 

	95,278,000 
	95,278,000 

	73,176,000 
	73,176,000 


	Total current liabilities 
	Total current liabilities 
	Total current liabilities 

	95,888,088 
	95,888,088 

	73,751,424 
	73,751,424 


	Noncurrent liabilities: 
	Noncurrent liabilities: 
	Noncurrent liabilities: 


	Commercial paper payable, net of current portion 
	Commercial paper payable, net of current portion 
	Commercial paper payable, net of current portion 

	76,599,000 
	76,599,000 

	78,535,000 
	78,535,000 


	Total liabilities 
	Total liabilities 
	Total liabilities 

	172,487,088 
	172,487,088 

	152,286,424 
	152,286,424 


	Net position: 
	Net position: 
	Net position: 


	Unrestricted 
	Unrestricted 
	Unrestricted 

	4,438,808 
	4,438,808 

	3,564,378 
	3,564,378 


	Total net position 
	Total net position 
	Total net position 

	4,438,808 
	4,438,808 
	$ 


	3,564,378 
	3,564,378 



	See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
	2024 
	2024 
	2024 
	2024 

	2023 
	2023 


	Operating revenues: 
	Operating revenues: 
	Operating revenues: 


	Program support 
	Program support 
	Program support 

	$ 2,396,529 
	$ 2,396,529 

	2,012,574 
	2,012,574 


	Interest income 
	Interest income 
	Interest income 

	6,692,129 
	6,692,129 

	4,079,408 
	4,079,408 


	Total operating revenues 
	Total operating revenues 
	Total operating revenues 

	9,088,658 
	9,088,658 

	6,091,982 
	6,091,982 


	Operating expenses: 
	Operating expenses: 
	Operating expenses: 


	Program costs 
	Program costs 
	Program costs 

	1,875,634 
	1,875,634 

	1,687,971 
	1,687,971 


	Interest on debt 
	Interest on debt 
	Interest on debt 

	6,692,129 
	6,692,129 

	4,079,408 
	4,079,408 


	Total operating expenses 
	Total operating expenses 
	Total operating expenses 

	8,567,763 
	8,567,763 

	5,767,379 
	5,767,379 


	Operating gain 
	Operating gain 
	Operating gain 

	520,895 
	520,895 

	324,603 
	324,603 


	Nonoperating revenues: 
	Nonoperating revenues: 
	Nonoperating revenues: 


	Investment income, net 
	Investment income, net 
	Investment income, net 

	353,535 
	353,535 

	8,861 
	8,861 


	Total nonoperating revenues 
	Total nonoperating revenues 
	Total nonoperating revenues 

	353,535 
	353,535 

	8,861 
	8,861 


	Change in net position 
	Change in net position 
	Change in net position 

	874,430 
	874,430 

	333,464 
	333,464 


	Net position, beginning of year 
	Net position, beginning of year 
	Net position, beginning of year 

	3,564,378 
	3,564,378 

	3,230,914 
	3,230,914 


	Net position, end of year 
	Net position, end of year 
	Net position, end of year 

	$ 
	$ 
	4,438,808 


	3,564,378 
	3,564,378 



	See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
	Statements of Cash Flows Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
	2024 
	2024 
	2024 
	2024 

	2023 
	2023 


	Cash flows from operating activities: 
	Cash flows from operating activities: 
	Cash flows from operating activities: 


	Program support 
	Program support 
	Program support 

	$ 2,396,529 
	$ 2,396,529 

	2,012,574 
	2,012,574 


	Expenditures and other deductions 
	Expenditures and other deductions 
	Expenditures and other deductions 

	(1,891,594) 
	(1,891,594) 

	(1,670,897) 
	(1,670,897) 


	Interest received on notes 
	Interest received on notes 
	Interest received on notes 

	6,642,088 
	6,642,088 

	3,743,783 
	3,743,783 


	Interest paid on commercial paper 
	Interest paid on commercial paper 
	Interest paid on commercial paper 

	(6,642,088) 
	(6,642,088) 

	(3,743,783) 
	(3,743,783) 


	Net cash provided by operating activities 
	Net cash provided by operating activities 
	Net cash provided by operating activities 

	504,935 
	504,935 

	341,677 
	341,677 


	Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
	Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
	Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 


	Proceeds from commercial paper 
	Proceeds from commercial paper 
	Proceeds from commercial paper 

	31,619,039 
	31,619,039 

	15,089,000 
	15,089,000 


	Payments of commercial paper 
	Payments of commercial paper 
	Payments of commercial paper 

	(20,528,000) 
	(20,528,000) 

	(16,348,000) 
	(16,348,000) 


	Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities 
	Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities 
	Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities 

	11,091,039 
	11,091,039 

	(1,259,000) 
	(1,259,000) 


	Cash flows from investing activities: 
	Cash flows from investing activities: 
	Cash flows from investing activities: 


	Invested in Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes 
	Invested in Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes 
	Invested in Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes 

	(31,619,039) 
	(31,619,039) 

	(15,089,000) 
	(15,089,000) 


	Proceeds from Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes 
	Proceeds from Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes 
	Proceeds from Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes 

	20,528,000 
	20,528,000 

	16,348,000 
	16,348,000 


	Investment income proceeds 
	Investment income proceeds 
	Investment income proceeds 

	354,031 
	354,031 

	17,680 
	17,680 


	Deposits into the CSU Consolidated Investment Pool 
	Deposits into the CSU Consolidated Investment Pool 
	Deposits into the CSU Consolidated Investment Pool 

	(57,604,499) 
	(57,604,499) 

	(36,620,257) 
	(36,620,257) 


	Withdrawals from the CSU Consolidated Investment Pool 
	Withdrawals from the CSU Consolidated Investment Pool 
	Withdrawals from the CSU Consolidated Investment Pool 

	56,745,533 
	56,745,533 

	36,260,900 
	36,260,900 


	Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities 
	Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities 
	Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities 

	(11,595,974) 
	(11,595,974) 

	917,323 
	917,323 


	Net change in cash and cash equivalents 
	Net change in cash and cash equivalents 
	Net change in cash and cash equivalents 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 
	Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 
	Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 
	Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 
	Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

	$ — 
	$ — 

	— 
	— 


	Reconciliation of operating gain to net cash provided by operating activities: 
	Reconciliation of operating gain to net cash provided by operating activities: 
	Reconciliation of operating gain to net cash provided by operating activities: 


	Operating gain 
	Operating gain 
	Operating gain 

	$ 520,895 
	$ 520,895 

	324,603 
	324,603 


	Adjustments to reconcile operating gain to net cash provided by operating activities: 
	Adjustments to reconcile operating gain to net cash provided by operating activities: 
	Adjustments to reconcile operating gain to net cash provided by operating activities: 


	Changes in assets and liabilities: 
	Changes in assets and liabilities: 
	Changes in assets and liabilities: 


	Increase in interest receivable 
	Increase in interest receivable 
	Increase in interest receivable 

	(50,041) 
	(50,041) 

	(335,625) 
	(335,625) 


	Increase in prepaid expenses 
	Increase in prepaid expenses 
	Increase in prepaid expenses 

	(583) 
	(583) 

	(1,000) 
	(1,000) 


	Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
	Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
	Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 

	(15,377) 
	(15,377) 

	18,074 
	18,074 


	Increase in interest payable 
	Increase in interest payable 
	Increase in interest payable 

	50,041 
	50,041 

	335,625 
	335,625 


	Net cash provided by operating activities 
	Net cash provided by operating activities 
	Net cash provided by operating activities 

	$ 504,935 
	$ 504,935 

	341,677 
	341,677 


	Supplemental disclosures of noncash capital and related financing activities: 
	Supplemental disclosures of noncash capital and related financing activities: 
	Supplemental disclosures of noncash capital and related financing activities: 


	Commercial paper proceeds directly wired to escrow agent by bank 
	Commercial paper proceeds directly wired to escrow agent by bank 
	Commercial paper proceeds directly wired to escrow agent by bank 

	$ 61,849,961 
	$ 61,849,961 

	37,600,000 
	37,600,000 


	Bond proceeds directly wired to Commercial Paper Trustee by bank 
	Bond proceeds directly wired to Commercial Paper Trustee by bank 
	Bond proceeds directly wired to Commercial Paper Trustee by bank 

	(61,849,961) 
	(61,849,961) 

	(37,600,000) 
	(37,600,000) 


	Rollover of commercial paper – principal issued 
	Rollover of commercial paper – principal issued 
	Rollover of commercial paper – principal issued 

	561,651,000 
	561,651,000 

	470,760,000 
	470,760,000 


	Rollover of commercial paper – principal paid 
	Rollover of commercial paper – principal paid 
	Rollover of commercial paper – principal paid 

	(561,651,000) 
	(561,651,000) 

	(470,760,000) 
	(470,760,000) 


	Bond Proceeds directly paid to CP Trustees 
	Bond Proceeds directly paid to CP Trustees 
	Bond Proceeds directly paid to CP Trustees 

	52,775,000 
	52,775,000 

	— 
	— 


	Commercial paper proceeds directly paid to STO 
	Commercial paper proceeds directly paid to STO 
	Commercial paper proceeds directly paid to STO 

	(52,775,000) 
	(52,775,000) 

	— 
	— 



	See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
	Notes to Financial Statements June 30, 2024 and 2023 
	(1) Organization 
	California State University Institute (the Institute) is a nonprofit California corporation that is an auxiliary organization of the California State University (the CSU). The Institute is a discretely presented component unit of the CSU. The lnstitute's primary purpose is to provide financing, in the form of commercial paper, to fund projects to be undertaken at the various CSU campuses. 
	(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
	(a) Basis of Presentation 
	The accompanying financial statements for the Institute have been prepared under the standards promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) using the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
	(b) New Accounting Pronouncements 
	On July 1, 2023, the Institute implemented GASB Statement No. 99, "Omnibus 2022," for provisions related to financial guarantees and the classification and reporting of derivative instruments within the scope of GASB 53. This Statement clarifies accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees. The implementation of this standard did not have a material impact on the Institute's financial statements. 
	On July 1, 2023, the Institute implemented GASB Statement No. 100, "Accounting Changes and Error Corrections." This Statement is intended to enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or assessing accountability. The implementation of this standard did not have a material impact on the Institute's financial statements. 
	In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 101, "Compensated Absences," which will be effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025. This statement will update the recognition and measurement guidance for compensated absences. This statement requires that liabilities for compensated absences be recognized for (1) leave that has not been used and (2) leave that has been used but not yet paid in cash or settled through noncash means. The Institute is currently assessing the impact of the implementation 
	In December 2023, the GASB issued Statement No. 102, "Certain Risk Disclosure,"which will be effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025. This statement will require disclosure about risks related to the Institute’s vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations or constraints. This statement requires the Institute to assess (1) whether a concentration or constraint makes the primary government reporting unit or other reporting units that report a liability for revenue debt vulnerable to the risk of a
	(c) Net Position 
	The lnstitute's net position is classified as unrestricted. Unrestricted net position may be designated for use by the Institute. The Institute has adopted a policy of utilizing restricted funds, when available, prior to unrestricted funds. There are no amounts required to be reported as restricted net position as of June 30, 2024 and 2023. 
	(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents and Statements of Cash Flows 
	The Institute considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity date of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. The Institute considers amounts included in the CSU Consolidated Investment Pool (the Investment Pool) to be investments. Certain transactions recorded as revenue or expenses in the accompanying Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position include transactions between entities that are also participants in the Investment Pool. The Institute considers 
	(e) Investments 
	Investments are reflected at fair value using quoted market prices. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in the accompanying Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position as a component of investment income, net. 
	Investments that are used for current operations are classified as short-term investments. Investments that are restricted for withdrawal or use for other than current operations, designated or restricted for the acquisition or construction of noncurrent assets, designated or restricted for the liquidation of the noncurrent portion of long-term debt, or restricted as to the liquidity of the investments are classified as other long-term investments. There are no long-term investments held at June 30, 2024. 
	(f) Revenues 
	The Institute reports collections from the participating members within program support in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for revenues recognized during the period earned. The rates charged to campuses for short-term campus construction project financings are equal to the rates charged on the lnstitute's commercial paper. The rates charged to participating members for capital financings are higher than the rates charged on the lnstitute's commercial paper due to the admini
	(g) Classification of Revenues and Expenses 
	The Institute considers operating revenues and expenses in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position to be those revenues and expenses that result from exchange transactions or other activities that are connected directly to the lnstitute's primary purposes. Exchange transactions include charges for services rendered and the acquisition of goods and services. Certain other transactions are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses in accordance with GASB requirements. These nono
	(h) Income Taxes 
	The Institute is an organization exempt from taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and Section 23701d of the California Revenue and Taxation Code and is generally not subject to federal or state income taxes. However, the Institute is subject to income taxes on any net income that is derived from a trade or business, regularly carried on, and not in furtherance of the purpose for which it is granted exemption. No income tax provision has been recorded as the net income, if any, from 
	(i) Use of Estimates 
	In preparing financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual amounts may differ from those estimates. 
	(3) Cash and Cash Equivalents, Investments, and Investment Income, Net 
	The Institute’s cash and cash equivalents and investments as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 are classified in the accompanying Statements of Net Position as follows: 
	2024 
	2024 
	2024 
	2024 

	2023 
	2023 


	Short-Term Investments 
	Short-Term Investments 
	Short-Term Investments 

	4,515,496 
	4,515,496 

	3,657,026 
	3,657,026 


	Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments 
	Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments 
	Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments 

	$ 4,515,496 
	$ 4,515,496 

	3,657,026 
	3,657,026 



	(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
	Cash and cash equivalents consisted of demand deposits held at a financial institution. 
	The Institute maintains centralized management for substantially all of its cash and cash equivalents. Cash in demand deposit accounts is minimized by sweeping available cash balances into the CSU Consolidated Investment Pool on a daily basis. 
	(i) Custodial Credit Risk for Deposits 
	Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the custodian, deposits may not be returned to the Institute. The lnstitute's deposits are maintained at financial institutions that are Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation secured at $250,000. 
	(b) Investments 
	At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Institute’s investment portfolio consisted of investments held in the CSU Consolidated Investment Pool. Separate accounting is maintained as to the amounts allocable to the various funds and programs. 
	(i) Investment Policy 
	State law and regulations require that surplus moneys of the Institute must be invested. The primary objective of the lnstitute's investment policy is to safeguard the principal. The secondary objective is to meet the liquidity needs of the Institute. The third objective is to return an acceptable yield. 
	The lnstitute's investment policy authorizes funds held in local trust accounts under Education Code Section 89721 and 89724 to be invested in any of the securities authorized by Government Code Section 16430 and Education Code Section 89724, subject to certain limitations. In general, the lnstitute's investment policy permits investments in obligations of the federal and California state governments, certificates of deposit, high-quality domestic corporate and fixed income securities, and certain other inv
	Custodial Credit Risk 
	(ii) 

	Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the custodian, the investments or deposits may not be returned to the Institute. All of the lnstitute's securities are registered in the CSU's name by the custodial bank as an agent for the Institute. 
	(iii) Interest Rate Risk 
	Interest rate risk is the risk that fluctuations in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to fluctuations in market interest rates. The lnstitute's investment guidelines measure interest rate risk by limiting an eligible investment to a maximum effective maturity and by limiting the weighted average duration of the portfolio. The effective maturity date reflects a bond with embe
	The weighted average durations of the lnstitute's investment portfolio for each investment type are 2.34346 and 1.94967 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 
	Another way the Institute manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of short-term and long-term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or nearing maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 
	(iv) Credit Risk 
	Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This risk is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 
	By law, the Institute invests in low credit risk securities such as U.S. government securities, securities of federally sponsored agencies, highly rated domestic corporate bonds, prime-rated commercial paper, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements, banker's acceptances, and negotiable certificates of deposit. 
	(v) Concentration Risk 
	Concentration of credit risk rises as investments become concentrated relative to a portfolio characteristic such as issuance, issuer, market sector, counter-party, or sovereign nation and is best mitigated by diversification. The lnstitute's investment policy has concentration limits that provide sufficient diversification. 
	(i) Fair Value Measurements 
	The Institute uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and to determine the fair value disclosures. The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is best determined based upon quoted market prices. However, in certain instances where quoted market prices are not available, fair values a
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Institute has the ability to access at the measurement date. 

	• 
	• 
	Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

	• 
	• 
	Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. This valuation is accomplished using management’s best estimate of fair value, with inputs into the determination of fair value that require significant management judgment or estimation. 


	As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, all investments held by the Institute are included in the CSU Consolidated Investment Pool and are not required to be disclosed within the Fair Value Hierarchy. 
	Investment Income, Net 
	(c) 

	Investment income, net, included within the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position comprises changes in unrealized losses of $0.5 thousand and $8.8 thousand net of interest and dividend income of $354.0 thousand and $17.7 thousand for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 
	(4) Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes Receivable 
	Under the Revenue Bond Anticipation Note (BAN) Resolution, BANs are issued directly by the CSU to the Institute, rather than publicly to the capital market. Thus, BANs are considered internal obligations between CSU and the Institute. The Institute purchases the BANs which act as collateral for the issuance of commercial paper to provide interim financing for campus capital projects. Each of the BANs finances a separate project and corresponds to an issue of commercial paper (note 5). 
	At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Institute held $171.9 million and $151.7 million, respectively, in BANs in relation to various campuses’ commercial paper issuances. Interest on BANs is equal to the interest on the commercial paper with maximum and minimum weighted average interest rates at June 30, 2024 and 2023 were 5.51% and 5.39%, and 2.83% and 1.16%, respectively. As of June 30, 2024, the Institute classified $95.3 million in BANs as current assets to be consistent with the presentation of the related co
	Project names 
	Project names 
	Project names 
	Project names 

	2024 
	2024 

	2023 
	2023 


	Cal Poly Corporation – 4800 Morabito Place Acquisition and Renovation Project 
	Cal Poly Corporation – 4800 Morabito Place Acquisition and Renovation Project 
	Cal Poly Corporation – 4800 Morabito Place Acquisition and Renovation Project 

	23,210,000 
	23,210,000 
	$ 


	— 
	— 


	Cal Poly Humboldt Student Housing Project 
	Cal Poly Humboldt Student Housing Project 
	Cal Poly Humboldt Student Housing Project 

	5,800,000 
	5,800,000 

	— 
	— 


	CSU San Marcos University Village Housing Project 
	CSU San Marcos University Village Housing Project 
	CSU San Marcos University Village Housing Project 

	21,064,000.00 
	21,064,000.00 

	— 
	— 


	CSU Stanislaus Affordable Student Housing 
	CSU Stanislaus Affordable Student Housing 
	CSU Stanislaus Affordable Student Housing 

	2,365,000 
	2,365,000 

	— 
	— 


	SDSU Aztec Shops, Ltd. The Essential Student Housing Property Acquisition Project 
	SDSU Aztec Shops, Ltd. The Essential Student Housing Property Acquisition Project 
	SDSU Aztec Shops, Ltd. The Essential Student Housing Property Acquisition Project 

	40,903,000 
	40,903,000 

	— 
	— 


	SDSU Aztec Shops, Ltd. Viva 5750 Apartment Acquisition 
	SDSU Aztec Shops, Ltd. Viva 5750 Apartment Acquisition 
	SDSU Aztec Shops, Ltd. Viva 5750 Apartment Acquisition 

	— 
	— 

	38,065,000 
	38,065,000 


	San Francisco State University Science Replacement Building College of Extended Learning (CEL) Addition 
	San Francisco State University Science Replacement Building College of Extended Learning (CEL) Addition 
	San Francisco State University Science Replacement Building College of Extended Learning (CEL) Addition 

	— 
	— 

	14,583,000 
	14,583,000 


	San Diego State University Mission Valley Multi-Use Stadium 
	San Diego State University Mission Valley Multi-Use Stadium 
	San Diego State University Mission Valley Multi-Use Stadium 

	72,000,000 
	72,000,000 

	92,000,000 
	92,000,000 


	San Luis Obispo Science and Agriculture Teaching and Research Complex Project 
	San Luis Obispo Science and Agriculture Teaching and Research Complex Project 
	San Luis Obispo Science and Agriculture Teaching and Research Complex Project 

	6,535,000 
	6,535,000 

	7,063,000 
	7,063,000 


	Total BANs receivable 
	Total BANs receivable 
	Total BANs receivable 

	$ 
	$ 
	$ 
	171,877,000 


	151,711,000 
	151,711,000 



	Future BAN payments due to the Institute as of June 30, 2024 are as follows: 
	Year 
	Year 
	Year 
	Year 

	Total 
	Total 


	2025 
	2025 
	2025 

	$ 95,278,000 
	$ 95,278,000 


	2026 
	2026 
	2026 

	6,436,000 
	6,436,000 


	2027 
	2027 
	2027 

	64,936,000 
	64,936,000 


	2028 
	2028 
	2028 

	5,227,000 
	5,227,000 


	TR
	Total 
	Total 

	$ 
	$ 
	171,877,000 




	(5) Commercial Paper 
	The Institute manages a commercial paper program, which provides for secured borrowings through issuance of Series A Tax Exempt and Series B Taxable Notes up to an authorized aggregate principal and accrued interest amount of $500 million. The commercial paper notes are issued in denominations of $1 thousand principal amounts each or any integral multiple thereof, and secured by BANs and other capital financing agreements (note 4). The commercial paper program is supported by a $300 million letter of credit
	As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, commercial paper with a face amount of $171.9 million and $151.7 million, respectively, was issued and outstanding. As of June 30,2024, the Institute classified $95.3 million in commercial paper payable as a current liability, consistent with the presentation of the related BANs. The borrowings have variable maturity dates not to exceed 270 days with rollover provisions at maturity and bear interest at tax-exempt or, in the case of taxable commercial paper, taxable commercial p
	The commercial paper program is bound by certain agreements, including the Trust Indenture with the trustee/paying agent and the Reimbursement Agreement with the Letter of Credit (LOC) banks. Under certain provisions of the Trust Indenture, in the event of a default, the trustee/paying agent shall take actions set forth by the BAN Resolution to affect the sale of long-term bonds to refinance outstanding commercial paper notes. Upon the occurrence of certain events of default specified in the Reimbursement A
	The carrying amounts of the lnstitute's commercial paper payable are as follows: 
	Table
	TR
	2024 
	2024 

	2023 
	2023 


	Commercial paper payable, current portion 
	Commercial paper payable, current portion 
	Commercial paper payable, current portion 

	$ 95,278,000 
	$ 95,278,000 

	73,176,000 
	73,176,000 


	Commercial paper payable, net of current portion 
	Commercial paper payable, net of current portion 
	Commercial paper payable, net of current portion 

	76,599,000 
	76,599,000 

	78,535,000 
	78,535,000 


	Total commercial paper payable 
	Total commercial paper payable 
	Total commercial paper payable 

	$ 
	$ 
	171,877,000 


	151,711,000 
	151,711,000 



	The changes in outstanding debt during fiscal years 2024 and 2023, which include the rollover of commercial paper, are as follows: 
	2024 
	2024 
	2024 
	2024 

	2023 
	2023 


	Commercial paper, beginning balance 
	Commercial paper, beginning balance 
	Commercial paper, beginning balance 

	$ 151,711,000 
	$ 151,711,000 

	115,370,000 
	115,370,000 


	Commercial paper issued, including rollovers – principal 
	Commercial paper issued, including rollovers – principal 
	Commercial paper issued, including rollovers – principal 

	655,120,000 
	655,120,000 

	523,449,000 
	523,449,000 


	Commercial paper paid, including rollovers – principal 
	Commercial paper paid, including rollovers – principal 
	Commercial paper paid, including rollovers – principal 

	(634,954,000) 
	(634,954,000) 

	(487,108,000) 
	(487,108,000) 


	Commercial paper, ending balance 
	Commercial paper, ending balance 
	Commercial paper, ending balance 

	$ 
	$ 
	171,877,000 


	151,711,000 
	151,711,000 



	(6) Related Party Transactions 
	The Institute provides funding to the CSU Chancellor’s Office for administrative services. The administrative services totaled $550 thousand and $401 thousand annually for fiscal years 2024 and 2023, respectively. 
	The Institute provides financing to CSU campuses to support construction projects and certain capital needs (note 4). The Institute received revenue for program support from the CSU campuses totaling $2.4 million and $2.0 million at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Additionally, interest income received by the Institute from CSU campuses was $6.7 million and $4.1 million for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 
	(7) Subsequent Events 
	Subsequent events have been evaluated through September 20, 2024 which corresponds to the date when the financial statements were issued. There are no subsequent events that require disclosure. 
	Schedule 1 
	Schedule of Net Position June 30, 2024 (for inclusion in the California State University Financial Statements) 
	Assets: 
	Assets: 
	Assets: 
	Assets: 


	Current assets: 
	Current assets: 
	Current assets: 


	Cash and cash equivalents 
	Cash and cash equivalents 
	Cash and cash equivalents 

	$ — 
	$ — 


	Short-term investments 
	Short-term investments 
	Short-term investments 

	4,515,496 
	4,515,496 


	Accounts receivable, net 
	Accounts receivable, net 
	Accounts receivable, net 

	510,150 
	510,150 


	Lease receivable, current portion 
	Lease receivable, current portion 
	Lease receivable, current portion 

	— 
	— 


	P3 receivable, current portion 
	P3 receivable, current portion 
	P3 receivable, current portion 

	— 
	— 


	Notes receivable, current portion 
	Notes receivable, current portion 
	Notes receivable, current portion 

	95,278,000 
	95,278,000 


	Pledges receivable, net 
	Pledges receivable, net 
	Pledges receivable, net 

	— 
	— 


	Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
	Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
	Prepaid expenses and other current assets 

	23,250 
	23,250 


	Total current assets 
	Total current assets 
	Total current assets 

	100,326,896 
	100,326,896 


	Noncurrent assets: 
	Noncurrent assets: 
	Noncurrent assets: 


	Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
	Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
	Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

	— 
	— 


	Accounts receivable, net 
	Accounts receivable, net 
	Accounts receivable, net 

	— 
	— 


	Lease receivable, net of current portion 
	Lease receivable, net of current portion 
	Lease receivable, net of current portion 

	— 
	— 


	P3 receivable, net of current portion 
	P3 receivable, net of current portion 
	P3 receivable, net of current portion 

	— 
	— 


	Notes receivable, net of current portion 
	Notes receivable, net of current portion 
	Notes receivable, net of current portion 

	76,599,000 
	76,599,000 


	Student loans receivable, net 
	Student loans receivable, net 
	Student loans receivable, net 

	— 
	— 


	Pledges receivable, net 
	Pledges receivable, net 
	Pledges receivable, net 

	— 
	— 


	Endowment investments 
	Endowment investments 
	Endowment investments 

	— 
	— 


	Other long-term investments 
	Other long-term investments 
	Other long-term investments 

	— 
	— 


	Capital assets, net 
	Capital assets, net 
	Capital assets, net 

	— 
	— 


	Other assets 
	Other assets 
	Other assets 

	— 
	— 


	Total noncurrent assets 
	Total noncurrent assets 
	Total noncurrent assets 

	76,599,000 
	76,599,000 


	Total assets 
	Total assets 
	Total assets 

	176,925,896 
	176,925,896 
	$ 



	Deferred outflows of resources: 
	Deferred outflows of resources: 
	Deferred outflows of resources: 


	Unamortized loss on debt refunding 
	Unamortized loss on debt refunding 
	Unamortized loss on debt refunding 

	— 
	— 
	$ 



	Net pension liability 
	Net pension liability 
	Net pension liability 

	— 
	— 


	Net OPEB liability 
	Net OPEB liability 
	Net OPEB liability 

	— 
	— 


	Leases 
	Leases 
	Leases 

	— 
	— 


	P3 
	P3 
	P3 

	— 
	— 


	Others 
	Others 
	Others 

	— 
	— 


	Total deferred outflows of resources 
	Total deferred outflows of resources 
	Total deferred outflows of resources 

	— 
	— 
	$ 



	Liabilities: 
	Liabilities: 
	Liabilities: 


	Current liabilities: 
	Current liabilities: 
	Current liabilities: 


	Accounts payable 
	Accounts payable 
	Accounts payable 

	99,938 
	99,938 
	$ 



	Accrued salaries and benefits 
	Accrued salaries and benefits 
	Accrued salaries and benefits 

	— 
	— 


	Accrued compensated absences, current portion 
	Accrued compensated absences, current portion 
	Accrued compensated absences, current portion 

	— 
	— 


	Unearned revenues 
	Unearned revenues 
	Unearned revenues 

	— 
	— 


	Lease liabilities, current portion 
	Lease liabilities, current portion 
	Lease liabilities, current portion 

	— 
	— 


	SBITA liabilities - current portion 
	SBITA liabilities - current portion 
	SBITA liabilities - current portion 

	— 
	— 


	P3 liabilities - current portion 
	P3 liabilities - current portion 
	P3 liabilities - current portion 

	— 
	— 


	Long-term debt obligations, current portion 
	Long-term debt obligations, current portion 
	Long-term debt obligations, current portion 

	95,278,000 
	95,278,000 


	Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses, current portion 
	Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses, current portion 
	Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses, current portion 

	— 
	— 


	Depository accounts 
	Depository accounts 
	Depository accounts 

	— 
	— 


	Other liabilities 
	Other liabilities 
	Other liabilities 

	510,150 
	510,150 


	Total current liabilities 
	Total current liabilities 
	Total current liabilities 

	95,888,088 
	95,888,088 


	Noncurrent liabilities: 
	Noncurrent liabilities: 
	Noncurrent liabilities: 


	Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion 
	Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion 
	Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion 

	— 
	— 
	$ 



	Unearned revenues 
	Unearned revenues 
	Unearned revenues 

	— 
	— 


	Grants refundable 
	Grants refundable 
	Grants refundable 

	— 
	— 


	Lease liabilities, net of current portion 
	Lease liabilities, net of current portion 
	Lease liabilities, net of current portion 

	— 
	— 


	SBITA liabilities, net of current portion 
	SBITA liabilities, net of current portion 
	SBITA liabilities, net of current portion 

	— 
	— 


	P3 liabilities, net of current portion 
	P3 liabilities, net of current portion 
	P3 liabilities, net of current portion 

	— 
	— 


	Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion 
	Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion 
	Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion 

	76,599,000 
	76,599,000 


	Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of current portion 
	Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of current portion 
	Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of current portion 

	— 
	— 


	Depository accounts 
	Depository accounts 
	Depository accounts 

	— 
	— 


	Net other postemployment benefits liability 
	Net other postemployment benefits liability 
	Net other postemployment benefits liability 

	— 
	— 


	Net pension liability 
	Net pension liability 
	Net pension liability 

	— 
	— 


	Other liabilities 
	Other liabilities 
	Other liabilities 

	— 
	— 


	Total noncurrent liabilities 
	Total noncurrent liabilities 
	Total noncurrent liabilities 

	76,599,000 
	76,599,000 


	Total liabilities 
	Total liabilities 
	Total liabilities 

	172,487,088 
	172,487,088 
	$ 



	Deferred inflows of resources: 
	Deferred inflows of resources: 
	Deferred inflows of resources: 


	P3 service concession arrangements 
	P3 service concession arrangements 
	P3 service concession arrangements 

	— 
	— 
	$ 



	Net pension liability 
	Net pension liability 
	Net pension liability 

	— 
	— 


	Net OPEB liability 
	Net OPEB liability 
	Net OPEB liability 

	— 
	— 


	Unamortized gain on debt refunding 
	Unamortized gain on debt refunding 
	Unamortized gain on debt refunding 

	— 
	— 


	Nonexchange transactions 
	Nonexchange transactions 
	Nonexchange transactions 

	— 
	— 


	Lease 
	Lease 
	Lease 

	— 
	— 


	P3 
	P3 
	P3 

	— 
	— 


	Others 
	Others 
	Others 

	— 
	— 


	Total deferred inflows of resources 
	Total deferred inflows of resources 
	Total deferred inflows of resources 

	— 
	— 
	$ 



	Net position: 
	Net position: 
	Net position: 


	Net investment in capital assets 
	Net investment in capital assets 
	Net investment in capital assets 

	— 
	— 
	$ 



	Restricted for: 
	Restricted for: 
	Restricted for: 


	Nonexpendable – endowments 
	Nonexpendable – endowments 
	Nonexpendable – endowments 

	— 
	— 


	Expendable: 
	Expendable: 
	Expendable: 


	Scholarships and fellowships 
	Scholarships and fellowships 
	Scholarships and fellowships 

	— 
	— 


	Research 
	Research 
	Research 

	— 
	— 


	Loans 
	Loans 
	Loans 

	— 
	— 


	Capital projects 
	Capital projects 
	Capital projects 

	— 
	— 


	Debt service 
	Debt service 
	Debt service 

	— 
	— 


	Others 
	Others 
	Others 

	— 
	— 


	Unrestricted 
	Unrestricted 
	Unrestricted 

	4,438,808 
	4,438,808 


	Total net position 
	Total net position 
	Total net position 

	$ 4,438,808 
	$ 4,438,808 



	See accompanying independent auditor's report. 
	Schedule 2 
	Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position Year ended June 30, 2024 (for inclusion in the California State University Financial Statements) 
	Revenues: 
	Revenues: 
	Revenues: 
	Revenues: 


	Operating revenues: 
	Operating revenues: 
	Operating revenues: 


	Student tuition and fees, gross 
	Student tuition and fees, gross 
	Student tuition and fees, gross 

	$ 
	$ 

	— 
	— 


	Scholarship allowances 
	Scholarship allowances 
	Scholarship allowances 

	— 
	— 


	Grants and contracts, noncapital: 
	Grants and contracts, noncapital: 
	Grants and contracts, noncapital: 


	Federal 
	Federal 
	Federal 

	— 
	— 


	State 
	State 
	State 

	— 
	— 


	Local 
	Local 
	Local 

	— 
	— 


	Nongovernmental 
	Nongovernmental 
	Nongovernmental 

	— 
	— 


	Sales and services of educational activities 
	Sales and services of educational activities 
	Sales and services of educational activities 

	— 
	— 


	Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, gross 
	Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, gross 
	Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, gross 

	— 
	— 


	Scholarship allowances 
	Scholarship allowances 
	Scholarship allowances 

	— 
	— 


	Other operating revenues 
	Other operating revenues 
	Other operating revenues 

	9,088,658 
	9,088,658 


	Total operating revenues 
	Total operating revenues 
	Total operating revenues 

	9,088,658 
	9,088,658 


	Expenses: 
	Expenses: 
	Expenses: 


	Operating expenses: 
	Operating expenses: 
	Operating expenses: 


	Instruction 
	Instruction 
	Instruction 

	— 
	— 


	Research 
	Research 
	Research 

	— 
	— 


	Public service 
	Public service 
	Public service 

	— 
	— 


	Academic support 
	Academic support 
	Academic support 

	— 
	— 


	Student services 
	Student services 
	Student services 

	— 
	— 


	Institutional support 
	Institutional support 
	Institutional support 

	— 
	— 


	Operation and maintenance of plant 
	Operation and maintenance of plant 
	Operation and maintenance of plant 

	— 
	— 


	Student grants and scholarships 
	Student grants and scholarships 
	Student grants and scholarships 

	— 
	— 


	Auxiliary enterprise expenses 
	Auxiliary enterprise expenses 
	Auxiliary enterprise expenses 

	8,567,763 
	8,567,763 


	Depreciation and amortization 
	Depreciation and amortization 
	Depreciation and amortization 

	— 
	— 


	Total operating expenses 
	Total operating expenses 
	Total operating expenses 

	8,567,763 
	8,567,763 


	Operating income 
	Operating income 
	Operating income 

	520,895 
	520,895 


	Nonoperating revenues: 
	Nonoperating revenues: 
	Nonoperating revenues: 


	State appropriations, noncapital 
	State appropriations, noncapital 
	State appropriations, noncapital 

	— 
	— 


	Federal financial aid grants, noncapital 
	Federal financial aid grants, noncapital 
	Federal financial aid grants, noncapital 

	— 
	— 


	State financial aid grants, noncapital 
	State financial aid grants, noncapital 
	State financial aid grants, noncapital 

	— 
	— 


	Local financial aid grants, noncapital 
	Local financial aid grants, noncapital 
	Local financial aid grants, noncapital 

	— 
	— 


	Nongovernmental and other financial aid grants, noncapital 
	Nongovernmental and other financial aid grants, noncapital 
	Nongovernmental and other financial aid grants, noncapital 

	— 
	— 


	Other federal nonoperating grants, noncapital 
	Other federal nonoperating grants, noncapital 
	Other federal nonoperating grants, noncapital 

	— 
	— 


	Gifts, noncapital 
	Gifts, noncapital 
	Gifts, noncapital 

	— 
	— 


	Investment income (loss), net 
	Investment income (loss), net 
	Investment income (loss), net 

	353,535 
	353,535 


	Endowment income (loss), net 
	Endowment income (loss), net 
	Endowment income (loss), net 

	— 
	— 


	Interest expense 
	Interest expense 
	Interest expense 

	— 
	— 


	Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
	Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
	Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

	— 
	— 


	Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
	Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
	Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

	353,535 
	353,535 


	Income (loss)  before other revenues (expenses) 
	Income (loss)  before other revenues (expenses) 
	Income (loss)  before other revenues (expenses) 

	874,430 
	874,430 


	State appropriations, capital 
	State appropriations, capital 
	State appropriations, capital 

	$ 
	$ 

	— 
	— 


	Grants and gifts, capital 
	Grants and gifts, capital 
	Grants and gifts, capital 

	— 
	— 


	Additions (reductions) to permanent endowments 
	Additions (reductions) to permanent endowments 
	Additions (reductions) to permanent endowments 

	— 
	— 


	Increase in net position 
	Increase in net position 
	Increase in net position 

	874,430 
	874,430 


	Net position: 
	Net position: 
	Net position: 


	Net position at beginning of year, as previously reported 
	Net position at beginning of year, as previously reported 
	Net position at beginning of year, as previously reported 

	3,564,378 
	3,564,378 


	Restatements 
	Restatements 
	Restatements 

	— 
	— 


	Net position at beginning of year, as restated 
	Net position at beginning of year, as restated 
	Net position at beginning of year, as restated 

	3,564,378 
	3,564,378 


	Net position at end of year 
	Net position at end of year 
	Net position at end of year 

	$ 
	$ 

	4,438,808 
	4,438,808 



	See accompanying independent auditor's report. 
	Schedule 3 
	Other Information June 30, 2024 (for inclusion in the California State University Financial Statements) 
	1.  Cash and cash equivalents: 
	Portion of restricted cash and cash equivalents related to endowments 
	Portion of restricted cash and cash equivalents related to endowments 
	Portion of restricted cash and cash equivalents related to endowments 
	Portion of restricted cash and cash equivalents related to endowments 

	$ — 
	$ — 


	All other restricted cash and cash equivalents 
	All other restricted cash and cash equivalents 
	All other restricted cash and cash equivalents 

	— 
	— 


	Noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents 
	Noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents 
	Noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents 

	— 
	— 


	Current cash and cash equivalents 
	Current cash and cash equivalents 
	Current cash and cash equivalents 

	— 
	— 


	Total 
	Total 
	Total 

	$ — 
	$ — 



	2.1  Composition of investments: 
	Table
	TR
	Current 
	Current 

	Noncurrent 
	Noncurrent 

	Total 
	Total 


	Money market funds 
	Money market funds 
	Money market funds 

	$ — 
	$ — 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Repurchase agreements 
	Repurchase agreements 
	Repurchase agreements 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Certificates of deposit 
	Certificates of deposit 
	Certificates of deposit 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	U.S. agency securities 
	U.S. agency securities 
	U.S. agency securities 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	U.S. treasury securities 
	U.S. treasury securities 
	U.S. treasury securities 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Municipal bonds 
	Municipal bonds 
	Municipal bonds 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Corporate bonds 
	Corporate bonds 
	Corporate bonds 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Asset-backed securities 
	Asset-backed securities 
	Asset-backed securities 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Mortgage-backed securities 
	Mortgage-backed securities 
	Mortgage-backed securities 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Commercial paper 
	Commercial paper 
	Commercial paper 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Supranational 
	Supranational 
	Supranational 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Mutual funds 
	Mutual funds 
	Mutual funds 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Exchange-traded funds 
	Exchange-traded funds 
	Exchange-traded funds 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Equity securities 
	Equity securities 
	Equity securities 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Alternative investments: 
	Alternative investments: 
	Alternative investments: 


	Private equity (including limited partnerships) 
	Private equity (including limited partnerships) 
	Private equity (including limited partnerships) 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Hedge funds 
	Hedge funds 
	Hedge funds 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Managed futures 
	Managed futures 
	Managed futures 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Real estate investments (including REITs) 
	Real estate investments (including REITs) 
	Real estate investments (including REITs) 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Commodities 
	Commodities 
	Commodities 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Derivatives 
	Derivatives 
	Derivatives 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Other alternative investments 
	Other alternative investments 
	Other alternative investments 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Other external investment pools 
	Other external investment pools 
	Other external investment pools 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	CSU Consolidated Investment Pool (formerly SWIFT) 
	CSU Consolidated Investment Pool (formerly SWIFT) 
	CSU Consolidated Investment Pool (formerly SWIFT) 

	4,515,496 
	4,515,496 

	— 
	— 

	4,515,496 
	4,515,496 


	State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
	State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
	State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	State of California Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF) 
	State of California Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF) 
	State of California Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF) 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Other investments: 
	Other investments: 
	Other investments: 


	Total Other investments 
	Total Other investments 
	Total Other investments 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Total investments 
	Total investments 
	Total investments 

	4,515,496 
	4,515,496 

	— 
	— 

	4,515,496 
	4,515,496 


	Less endowment investments 
	Less endowment investments 
	Less endowment investments 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Total investments, net of endowments 
	Total investments, net of endowments 
	Total investments, net of endowments 

	$ 4,515,496 
	$ 4,515,496 

	— 
	— 

	4,515,496 
	4,515,496 



	2.2   Fair value hierarchy in investments: 
	Table
	TR
	Total 
	Total 

	Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1) 
	Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1) 

	Significant Other Observabl e Inputs (Level 2) 
	Significant Other Observabl e Inputs (Level 2) 

	Significant Unobserva ble Inputs (Level 3) 
	Significant Unobserva ble Inputs (Level 3) 

	Net Asset Value 
	Net Asset Value 
	(NAV) 


	Money market funds 
	Money market funds 
	Money market funds 

	$ — 
	$ — 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Repurchase agreements 
	Repurchase agreements 
	Repurchase agreements 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Certificates of deposit 
	Certificates of deposit 
	Certificates of deposit 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	U.S. agency securities 
	U.S. agency securities 
	U.S. agency securities 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	U.S. treasury securities 
	U.S. treasury securities 
	U.S. treasury securities 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Municipal bonds 
	Municipal bonds 
	Municipal bonds 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Corporate bonds 
	Corporate bonds 
	Corporate bonds 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Asset-backed securities 
	Asset-backed securities 
	Asset-backed securities 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Mortgage-backed securities 
	Mortgage-backed securities 
	Mortgage-backed securities 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Commercial paper 
	Commercial paper 
	Commercial paper 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Supranational 
	Supranational 
	Supranational 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Mutual funds 
	Mutual funds 
	Mutual funds 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Exchange-traded funds 
	Exchange-traded funds 
	Exchange-traded funds 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Equity securities 
	Equity securities 
	Equity securities 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Alternative investments: 
	Alternative investments: 
	Alternative investments: 


	Private equity (including limited partnerships) 
	Private equity (including limited partnerships) 
	Private equity (including limited partnerships) 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Hedge funds 
	Hedge funds 
	Hedge funds 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Managed futures 
	Managed futures 
	Managed futures 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Real estate investments (including REITs) 
	Real estate investments (including REITs) 
	Real estate investments (including REITs) 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Commodities 
	Commodities 
	Commodities 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Derivatives 
	Derivatives 
	Derivatives 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Other alternative investment types 
	Other alternative investment types 
	Other alternative investment types 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Other external investment pools 
	Other external investment pools 
	Other external investment pools 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
	State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
	State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	State of California Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF) 
	State of California Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF) 
	State of California Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF) 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	TR
	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Equity in CSU Consolidated Investment Pool 
	Equity in CSU Consolidated Investment Pool 
	Equity in CSU Consolidated Investment Pool 

	4,515,496 
	4,515,496 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Total investments 
	Total investments 
	Total investments 

	$4,515,496 
	$4,515,496 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 



	2.3  Investments held by the University under contractual agreements: Not Applicable 
	3.1  Composition of capital assets, including ROU, net: Not Applicable 
	3.2  Detail of depreciation and amortization expense: Not Applicable 
	4.  Long-term liabilities: 
	Long-term debt obligations: 
	Table
	TR
	Balance 
	Balance 
	Balance 
	June 30, 2023 


	Additions 
	Additions 

	Reductions 
	Reductions 

	Balance 
	Balance 
	Balance 
	June 30, 2024 


	Current Portion 
	Current Portion 

	Noncurrent Portion 
	Noncurrent Portion 


	Commercial paper 
	Commercial paper 
	Commercial paper 

	$ 151,711,000 
	$ 151,711,000 

	655,120,000 
	655,120,000 

	(634,954,000) 
	(634,954,000) 
	(634,954,000) 


	171,877,000 
	171,877,000 

	95,278,000 
	95,278,000 

	76,599,000 
	76,599,000 


	Total long-term debt obligations 
	Total long-term debt obligations 
	Total long-term debt obligations 

	$ 151,711,000 
	$ 151,711,000 
	$ 151,711,000 


	655,120,000 
	655,120,000 

	(634,954,000) 
	(634,954,000) 
	(634,954,000) 


	171,877,000 
	171,877,000 

	95,278,000 
	95,278,000 

	76,599,000 
	76,599,000 



	5.  Lease, SBITA, P3 liabilities: Not Applicable 
	6.  Future minimum payments schedule - Long-term debt obligations: 
	Auxiliary revenue bonds (non-SRB related) 
	Auxiliary revenue bonds (non-SRB related) 
	Auxiliary revenue bonds (non-SRB related) 
	Auxiliary revenue bonds (non-SRB related) 

	All other long-term debt obligations 
	All other long-term debt obligations 
	All other long-term debt obligations 


	Total long-term debt obligations 
	Total long-term debt obligations 


	Year ending June 30: 
	Year ending June 30: 
	Year ending June 30: 

	Principal
	Principal
	 Only 


	Interest 
	Interest 
	Only 


	Principal and Interest 
	Principal and Interest 

	Principal Only 
	Principal Only 

	Interest Only 
	Interest Only 

	Principal and Interest 
	Principal and Interest 

	Principal Only 
	Principal Only 

	Interest Only 
	Interest Only 

	Principal and Interest 
	Principal and Interest 


	2025 
	2025 
	2025 

	$ — 
	$ — 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	95,278,000 
	95,278,000 

	— 
	— 

	95,278,000 
	95,278,000 

	95,278,000 
	95,278,000 

	— 
	— 

	95,278,000 
	95,278,000 


	2026 
	2026 
	2026 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	6,436,000 
	6,436,000 

	— 
	— 

	6,436,000 
	6,436,000 

	6,436,000 
	6,436,000 

	— 
	— 

	6,436,000 
	6,436,000 


	2027 
	2027 
	2027 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	64,936,000 
	64,936,000 

	— 
	— 

	64,936,000 
	64,936,000 

	64,936,000 
	64,936,000 

	— 
	— 

	64,936,000 
	64,936,000 


	2028 
	2028 
	2028 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	5,227,000 
	5,227,000 

	— 
	— 

	5,227,000 
	5,227,000 

	5,227,000 
	5,227,000 

	— 
	— 

	5,227,000 
	5,227,000 


	2029 
	2029 
	2029 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Total minimum payments 
	Total minimum payments 
	Total minimum payments 

	$ — 
	$ — 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	171,877,000 
	171,877,000 
	171,877,000 


	— 
	— 

	171,877,000 
	171,877,000 

	171,877,000 
	171,877,000 

	— 
	— 

	171,877,000 
	171,877,000 


	Less: amounts representing interest 
	Less: amounts representing interest 
	Less: amounts representing interest 

	— 

	Present value of future minimum payments 
	Present value of future minimum payments 
	Present value of future minimum payments 

	171,877,000 
	171,877,000 
	171,877,000 



	Unamortized net premium/(discount) 
	Unamortized net premium/(discount) 
	Unamortized net premium/(discount) 

	— 

	Total long-term debt obligations 
	Total long-term debt obligations 
	Total long-term debt obligations 

	171,877,000 
	171,877,000 


	Less: current portion 
	Less: current portion 
	Less: current portion 

	(95,278,000) 
	(95,278,000) 
	(95,278,000) 



	Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion 
	Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion 
	Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion 

	$ 76,599,000 
	$ 76,599,000 
	$ 76,599,000 




	7.  Transactions with related entities: 
	Payments to University for salaries of University personnel working on contracts, grants, and other programs 
	Payments to University for salaries of University personnel working on contracts, grants, and other programs 
	Payments to University for salaries of University personnel working on contracts, grants, and other programs 
	Payments to University for salaries of University personnel working on contracts, grants, and other programs 

	$ 549,550 
	$ 549,550 


	Payments to University for other than salaries of University personnel 
	Payments to University for other than salaries of University personnel 
	Payments to University for other than salaries of University personnel 

	— 
	— 


	Payments received from University for services, space, and programs 
	Payments received from University for services, space, and programs 
	Payments received from University for services, space, and programs 

	— 
	— 


	Gifts-in-kind to the University from discretely presented component units 
	Gifts-in-kind to the University from discretely presented component units 
	Gifts-in-kind to the University from discretely presented component units 

	— 
	— 


	Gifts (cash or assets) to the University from discretely presented component units 
	Gifts (cash or assets) to the University from discretely presented component units 
	Gifts (cash or assets) to the University from discretely presented component units 

	— 
	— 


	Accounts payable to University 
	Accounts payable to University 
	Accounts payable to University 

	— 
	— 


	Other amounts payable to University 
	Other amounts payable to University 
	Other amounts payable to University 

	— 
	— 


	Accounts receivable from University 
	Accounts receivable from University 
	Accounts receivable from University 

	— 
	— 


	Other amounts receivable from University 
	Other amounts receivable from University 
	Other amounts receivable from University 

	— 
	— 



	8. Restatements: Not Applicable 
	9. Natural classifications of operating expenses: 
	Table
	TR
	Salaries 
	Salaries 

	Benefits - Other 
	Benefits - Other 

	Benefits - Pension 
	Benefits - Pension 

	Benefits - 
	Benefits - 
	OPEB 

	Scholarships and fellowships 
	Scholarships and fellowships 

	Supplies and other services 
	Supplies and other services 

	Depreciation and amortization 
	Depreciation and amortization 

	Total operating expenses 
	Total operating expenses 


	Instruction 
	Instruction 
	Instruction 

	$ — 
	$ — 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Research 
	Research 
	Research 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Public service 
	Public service 
	Public service 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Academic support 
	Academic support 
	Academic support 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Student services 
	Student services 
	Student services 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Institutional support 
	Institutional support 
	Institutional support 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Operation and maintenance of plant 
	Operation and maintenance of plant 
	Operation and maintenance of plant 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Student grants and scholarships 
	Student grants and scholarships 
	Student grants and scholarships 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Auxiliary enterprise expenses 
	Auxiliary enterprise expenses 
	Auxiliary enterprise expenses 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	8,567,763 
	8,567,763 

	— 
	— 

	8,567,763 
	8,567,763 


	Depreciation and amortization 
	Depreciation and amortization 
	Depreciation and amortization 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 


	Total operating expenses 
	Total operating expenses 
	Total operating expenses 

	$ — 
	$ — 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	— 
	— 

	8,567,763 
	8,567,763 

	— 
	— 

	8,567,763 
	8,567,763 



	10. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources:  Not Applicable 
	11. Other nonoperating revenues (expenses)  Not Applicable 
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